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	Stage 01: Modification Proposal
	
	At what stage is this document in the process?
	

	iGT0XX:(iGT UNC Representative to insert number)
Mod Title: Revision to the Modification Rules in Response to CGR3 – Significant Code Review Modifications
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	1.1 
	

	Insert no more than a two sentence description of what the modification seeks to achieve
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	The Proposer recommends that this modification should be (delete as appropriate): 
· proceed to consultation on the basis that it has been produced as an output of the CGR3 Review Group
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About this document:

This modification has been raised following discussions in the RG002 Code Governance Review CGR3 Review Group. 

The panel will consider the proposer’s recommendation, and agree whether this modification should be subject to self-governance; and whether it should be issued for consultation or be referred to a workgroup for assessment.
Guidance on the use of this Template:

This is an iGT UNC Modification Proposal template that the Proposer is asked to complete. All parts other than the Solution (which is “owned” by the Proposer) will be refined by the workgroup process. A separate checklist is also available to help identify impacts that, if material, should be recorded in this template.
The iGT UNC Representative is available to help and support the drafting of any Modification Proposals, including guidance on completion of this template and the wider modification process. Contact igt-unc@gemserv.co.uk or 0207 090 1044.
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	Any questions?

	
	Contact:

Code Administrator
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igt-unc@gemserv.com 
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0207 090 1044

	
	Proposer:

Kish Nundloll 
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kishn@espipelines.com
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01372 227 245

	
	Workgroup Chair:
Steve Ladle
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1. Plain English Summary
The following summary should be completed in plain English, and should be as brief as possible. A more detailed exposition should be provided in the following sections.
Is this a Self-Governance Modification?

Clearly state if self-governance does or does not apply and why. 

It is the proposer’s view that Self-Governance does not apply to this modification as it is making changes to the iGT UNC Modification Rules which is a specific exclusion in the Self-Governance criteria
If so, will this be progressed as a Fast Track Modification?

Fast-Track does not apply as this modification will need to go to the Authority for their consideration 
Rationale for Change

Concisely explain why the change is proposed i.e. the defect in the code that is to be addressed. 

This Proposal seeks to introduce the changes required to the iGT UNC in order to comply with the CGR3 final proposals for Significant Code Review modifications that were issued on the 31st March 2016 together with subsequent proposed licence changes to SLC 9 (Network Code and Uniform Network Code) 

 Solution

Concisely explain the modification that is proposed to address the identified defect.

The current modification rules describe a number of processes that must be applied when considering a modification proposal that is classified as a “Significant Code Review Modification Proposal”. The Code Governance Review 3 has extended these in 2 distinct areas:

1) Where the Significant Code Review Modification Proposal has been initiated by the Authority but where the Modification will still be managed under the existing modification rules processes; or

2) Where the Significant Code Review Change has been managed directly by the Authority outside of the current Modification Rules but where the Authority has requested the iGT UNC Panel make a recommendation on whether or not they believe the proposal should be implemented.

These changes have been written into the Transporters licence to come into effect on  ?????????????? and this proposal has been raised to ensure that the iGTs can continue to meet their licence obligations.   
The proposed solution is to change the Modification Rules to reflect the new requirements within the licence.  
Relevant Objectives

Concisely state the impact the modification will have on the relevant objectives. Indicate an estimate of likely implementation costs (if known).

There should be a Positive impact on Relevant Objectives c), d) and f)
Implementation

Outline the likely implementation costs and any requirements for the implementation date.  If a particular implementation date is sought, outline why this is required. 
The Modification Proposal can be implemented as soon as possible after its implementation has been approved.
2. Rationale for Change

Set out in plain English why the modification of the code is proposed – i.e. what is the defect in the existing code that has been identified and needs to be rectified. This may be either an issue with an existing code provision or an issue on which the iGT UNC is silent but should not be.

The Final Proposals from the Authority re the Significant Code Review (SCR) process provide three options that could be followed under an SCR process. 
Option 1 - The Authority will retain the ability to follow the current SCR process, under which they direct a licensee(s) to raise modification proposals at the end of the SCR. 
Option 2 –The introduction of the ability for the Authority to raise a modification proposal(s) at the end of an SCR. 
Under these two options the modifications would follow the standard industry process. 
Option 3 - Enables Ofgem to lead an end-to-end process to develop code modification(s) but also allows Ofgem to request the iGT UNC Panel to consider whether or not they (the Panel) believe the modification should implemented. 
These options have also been set out in changes to the iGT Licence under SLC 9 (Network Code and Uniform Network Code).

In order to comply with these changes the current Modification Rules as set out in the iGT UNC will need to be modified.
3. Solution
Set out in detail the iGT UNC changes that are proposed – what, not why. This section is “owned” by the proposer and will not be altered by the workgroup and so should set out the change you, as proposer, wish to see made – which you can amend later to take into account issues raised by a workgroup. This is also the section that will be used to draft the legal text that changes the iGT UNC. It should therefore be in sufficient detail to act as legal instructions and support the drafting of text. In general, the provision of business rules is recommended.
The following is an extract from the Code Governance Review (Phase 3): Final Proposals published by Ofgem on the 31st March 2016:
“2.29. The current SCR process together with our Final Proposals is illustrated in Figure 2.1. We have simplified the diagram that we included in our Initial Proposals document to show that, in essence, there are three main options, which are: 

1. Ofgem directs licensee(s) to raise modification proposal(s). At the end of the SCR process we would issue a direction to the relevant licensee(s). Our direction may set out high level principles (with the detail to be developed by industry) or more specific, detailed conclusions to be given effect through code change(s). The modification(s) would follow the standard industry code modification processes.6 

2. Ofgem raises modification proposal(s). At the end of the SCR process we would raise a modification(s) under the relevant code(s), and the modification(s) would follow the standard industry code modification processes. 

3. Ofgem leads an end-to-end process to develop code modification(s). The standard industry process would not apply; Ofgem would lead consultation and engagement needed to develop the appropriate code change(s). We would expect close involvement of the industry; for example, we may establish and lead workgroups similar to the approach under the standard code modification processes (but led by us). “
Option 1 is already generally catered for in the iGT UNC
iGT UNC Modification Rules

10.1.5 The Authority may direct an iGT UNC Operator to make a Significant Code Review Modification Proposal in respect of the iGT UNC and/or the Individual Network Code and without prejudice to Clause 15 or Clause 16, the iGT UNC Operator shall make a proposal in accordance with that direction and such a proposal shall proceed in accordance with the Modification Procedures.

Option 2 requires an amendment to the Rules to allow the Authority to itself raise a Significant Code Review Modification Proposal. Currently the Authority can only raise a European Modification Proposal.

Both Options 1 and 2 will also require additional changes to the Modification Rules to fully comply with the changes made to paragraph 12 of SLC 9 (Network Code and Uniform Network Code). These licence changes allow the Authority the ability to specify changes to the modification process in terms of which of the modification steps are to be followed and the timetable for the completion of each, some or all of the steps within the modification process. These changes appear to be consistent with the changes that were introduced for European Modification Proposals and it is considered that the best Solution would be to amend the current process for such Modifications by extending it to include Significant Code Review Modification Proposals.
For Option 3 the change required is to give effect to the following requirement within the licence.
12CC. The network code modification procedures shall provide, where the Authority submits a significant code review modification proposal to the panel in accordance with paragraph 12CB: 

a. for the licensee to give notice to the Authority: 

i. including a recommendation by the panel as to whether the proposed modification should or should not be made, and the factors which (in the opinion of such body) justify the making or not making of the proposed modification, which shall include: 

(aa) a detailed explanation of whether and, if so how, the proposed modification would better facilitate the achievement of the relevant objectives; and 

(bb) where the impact is likely to be material, an assessment of the quantifiable impact of the proposed modification on greenhouse gas emissions, to be conducted in accordance with any such guidance (on the treatment of carbon costs and evaluation of greenhouse gas emissions) as may be issued by the Authority from time to time; 

ii. giving such further information as may be required to be given to the Authority by the network code modification procedures; 
b. for the licensee to comply with any direction of the Authority: 

i. to make a modification to the network code and/or the uniform network code in accordance with a proposal described in a notice given to the Authority under sub-paragraph 12CC(a) which, in the opinion of the Authority, will, as compared to the existing provisions of the network code and/or (as the case may be) the uniform network code or any alternative proposal, better facilitate, consistent with the licensee’s duties under section 9 of the Act, the achievement of the relevant objectives; or 

ii. to revise and re-submit a report provided in accordance with sub-paragraph 12CC(a) where the Authority determines that it cannot properly form an opinion on the approval of the modification proposal in accordance with paragraph 12CC(b)(i); 

c. for each of the procedural steps outlined in this paragraph 12CC, to the extent that they are relevant, to be in accordance with any timetable(s) directed by the Authority under paragraph 7(k). 

The Authority’s published conclusions and significant code review modification proposal shall not fetter the voting rights of the members of the panel or the recommendation procedures informing the recommendation described at sub-paragraph 12CC(a)(i).
For Option 3 it is proposed that a new Clause be added to the Modification Rules to detail the above requirements specifically restricted to Significant Code Review Proposals raised and managed by Ofgem. 
4. Relevant Objectives
	Impact of the modification on the Relevant Objectives:

	Relevant Objective
	Identified impact

	a) 
Efficient and economic operation of the pipe-line system.
	None

	b) 
Coordinated, efficient and economic operation of 

(i)
the combined pipe-line system, and/ or

(ii)
the pipe-line system of one or more other relevant gas transporters.
	None

	c) 
Efficient discharge of the licensee's obligations.
	Positive

	d) 
Securing of effective competition:

(i)
between relevant shippers;

(ii)
between relevant suppliers; and/or

(iii)
between DN operators (who have entered into transportation arrangements with other relevant gas transporters) and relevant shippers.
	Positive

	e) 
Provision of reasonable economic incentives for relevant suppliers to secure that the domestic customer supply security standards… are satisfied as respects the availability of gas to their domestic customers.
	None

	f) 
Promotion of efficiency in the implementation and administration of the Code.
	Positive

	g)  Compliance with the Regulation and any relevant legally binding decisions of the European Commission and/or the Agency for the Co-operation of Energy Regulators.
	None


The following paragraphs should explain in detail and plain English how each of the impacts identified above would arise and how this impacts the relevant objective identified.
The Proposer (Workgroup) considers that this Modification would facilitate: 
Objective c)  Unless changes are made to the Modification Rules they will not reflect the changes that have been made to the iGT  Transporter Licence thus placing the Transporter in breach of Licence should the Rules need to be applied to process a Significant Code Review Modification either raised by a Transporter on the direction of the Authority or where it has been raised directly by the Authority.   
Objective d) On the assumption that a Significant Code Review Modification provides benefits to Consumers then by ensuring the Proposal is processed effectively should assist in the Securing of Effective Competition.
Objective f) Ensuring that the Modification Rules in the IGT UNC properly reflect the licence obligations of the iGTs should ensure that the administration of the Code can be managed more efficiently. .

5. Impacts and Costs
This section should list the industry impacts and costs associated with the implementation of this Modification, as identified by the Workgroup. Potential areas impacted include Transporter and Shipper systems and processes, Code Administration and impact on the Code itself. Further guidance on completing this section is available in the Modification Checklist.
The Proposer does not believe that there will be any direct costs associated with the implementation of this modification. 
6. Likely Impact on Consumers
Please detail any anticipated impacts of the proposed Modification specifically on consumers.
The Proposer does not believe that there will be any direct impact on consumers associated with the implementation of this modification. 

7. Likely Impact on Environment
Please detail any anticipated impacts of the proposed Modification on the environment (e.g. increased carbon emissions).
The Proposer does not believe that there will be any direct impact on the environment associated with the implementation of this modification. 

8. Implementation
Provide any views you have on the anticipated impact of the proposed Modification on all parties (such as Transporters, Shippers, central systems, customers) in terms of the costs and benefits of a range of implementation options where appropriate. 
If a suggested implementation date is not provided and the decision is to accept the modification, then the Transporters will set the implementation date.  
The Proposers view is that implementation should be in the first scheduled release following a decision to implement by the Authority.   
9. Legal Text

While the Proposer is welcome to put forward suggested legal text, text will be provided by the Transporters when requested by the Modification Panel.

Insert text here

Insert at a later stage
10. Recommendation 
If it is recommended that the modification is issued directly to consultation, the Proposer should provide a justification. If workgroup assessment is recommended, the proposer may outline a recommended timetable and indicate any particular areas that a workgroup is asked to consider. 

The Proposer invites the Panel to: 

· Determine that this modification should not be subject to self-governance;
· Determine that this modification should progress to Consultation on the basis that the Modification has been developed through the Review Group process 
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